HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
April 14, 2014
5:36 p.m

5:36: 06 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Vice-Chair Neuman called the House Finance Conmmittee
neeting to order at 5:36 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Al an Austernan, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze, Co-Chair
Represent ati ve Mark Neuman, Vice-Chair
Representative Ma Costello
Representati ve Bryce Edgnon
Representative Les Gara

Representative David Guttenberg
Representati ve Lindsey Hol nes
Representati ve Cat hy Minoz
Representative Steve Thonpson
Representative Tanme W/ son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Representative Dan Saddl er; Representative Gabrielle
LeDoux; Anthony DeMare, Denali Deaf Community Center,
Anchorage; Mrgan Evans, Denali Deaf Conmmunity Center,
Anchorage; Tracy Pifer, Denali Deaf Center, Anchorage; Jeff
Weltzin, Tanana Chiefs Conference, Tanana; Jack Hebert,
President, CEQ Cold Cimte Housing Research Center; Janes

Mar cus, District Manager , Sout heast Soi | and \ater
Conservation Council; Janes Sullivan, Southeast Al aska
Conservation Council, Juneau; Merrill Sanford, Myor, City
and Borough of Juneau; Bill Leighty, Business Oaner,

Juneau; Jan Dawe, BAKLAP, Juneau; Nancy Seanount, Teacher,
Juneau; Doug Blanc, Site Coordinator, C'S, Juneau Dougl as
Hi gh School, Juneau; Ben Cornell, Self, Juneau; Richard
Dawenhauwer, Menber, Parish Council, St. Nicholas Russian
Ot hodox Church, Juneau; Sally WIlson, Self, Juneau; Janet

House Fi nance Committee 1 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



Kussart, Self, Juneau; Rob Jordan, Executive Director,
Al aska Craftsman Honme Program Juneau; Jim Kacsh, Mayor,
Cty of Cordova; Al bert Judson, Self, Juneau; Martha Mbore,
Vol unt eer Board Menber, Alaska Brain Injury Network (ABIN),
Juneau; Paul Fuhs, Self, Fairview

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Pam Muel | er-Quy, Denali Deaf Community Center, Juneau; Joe
D nnocenzo, Kodiak Soil and Water Conservation, Kodiak;
Ni ck Szabo, Treasurer, Alaska Search and Rescue, Kodi ak;
Ay Russel -Jangochin, Kawerak Inc., Nome; Cay Koplin, CEQ,
Cordova Electric Cooperative, Cor dova; Bret Bradford,
Menmber, Cordova City Council, Cordova; Jennifer G bbins,
President, Cordova Chanber of Comerce, Cordova; Heidi
Chay, District Mnager, Kenai Soil and Water Conservation
District, Kenai; Ken Ray, Self, Wsilla, Dck Zobel,
Wasilla Soil Water Conservation District, Wsilla; Jeff
Clark, Al aska Trauma Care Fund, Bethel; Edward Al exander,
Second Chief Fort Yukon, Fort Yukon; PJ Sinon, Allakaket
Tribe, Allakaket; Lisa Charles, Newok Traditional Council,
Newt ok; Clay Wilker, Denali Borough Myor, Healy; Jeff
Smeenk, Self, Palnmer; Bernice John, Newtok Traditional
Council, Newtok; Rex Wigley, Self, Delta Junction; Ken
Marsh, Upper Susitna Soil and Water Conservation, Trapper
Creek; Todd Pettit, Palmer Soil Water Conservation, Pal ner;
Robin Ward, Self, Anchorage; Cynthia Franklin, Anchorage
Muni ci pal Pr osecut or, Anchor age; Janes  Trunp, Sel f,
Tal keetna; Carrie Longoria, Anchorage Minicipal Health and
Human Services Departnent, Anchorage; Cat Bullington, Self,
Wasi |l a; Peggy MLaughlin, Port Director, Gty of Unal aska;
Lorraine King, Elected Oficial, Ekwk Village Council,
Ekwok; Ronald K. Inouye, Self, Fairbanks; Ronda Schl unbohm
Boreal Alaska - Learning, Adaptation, Production (BAKLAP),
Fai r banks; Lou Brown, Sel f, Fai r banks; Chri sti na- Al ex
Li akos, Self, Fairbanks; Kaitlin Vadla, Self, Kenai; Zach
Meyers, Self, Fairbanks; Andrew Allaby, BAKLAP, Fairbanks;
Birch Pavel sky, Volunteer, BAKLAP One Tree, Fairbanks; Jim
Sackett, CEO  Toghotthele Corporation, Fairbanks; @ enn
Juday, Director, BAKLAP, Fairbanks; Lauren Lynch, G aduate
Student, UAF, Fairbanks; John Ringstad, Fairbanks North
Star Borough School District, Fairbanks; Luke Hopkins,
Mayor, Fairbanks North Star Borough; David Selunis-Mssir,

Rur al Energy  Coordi nator, Tanana Chiefs  Conference,
Fai r banks; Sarah Obed, Doyon Limted, Fairbanks; M ke
Musi ck, Self, Fairbanks; Tamm Ganguli, Self, Fairbanks;

Laura Coner, Self, Anchorage; Diane Hutchison, Finance

House Fi nance Committee 2 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



Chair, Assenbly, Fairbanks North Star Borough Assenbly,
Fai rbanks; Patrice Lee, Citizens for Cean Air, Fairbanks;
Don Gray, Self, Fairbanks; John Eberhart, Mayor, Gty of
Fai rbanks; Adam Krynicki, Enployee, Ofice of Intellectual

Property and Conmmercialization, UAF, Fai r banks; June
Thomasson, Self, Fairbanks; Ron Yarnell, Owmer, Al About
Adventure, Fairbanks; David Venenburg, Executive Director,
Downt own  Associ ation of Fai r banks, Fai r banks; Rober t

Silvertsen, Menber, City Council, Ketchikan; Dan Bockhorst,
Manager, Ketchikan Gateway Borough; Trey Acteson, CEQ,
Sout heast Al aska Power Agency (SEAPA), Ketchikan; Dee Pond,
Al aska Association of Conservation Districts, Big Lake;
Mel i ssa  Coady, Menber , Tal keetna  Community  Council,
Tal keetna; Jason Mayrand, WMayor, City of Nenana; Lynn
Bat eman, Director, Coffman Cove Community Library, Coffnman
Cove; Carolyn Batenman, Sel f, Cof fman  Cove; Howar d
Mer el stein, Executive Director, Tetlin Village Council,
Tetlin; MIlly Wod, Menber, Chase Conmunity Council, Chase;
Earnest Arnold, Self, Tanacross; Ryan Stencel, Anchorage
Soil and Water Conservation District, Anchorage; Rhonda
Pitka, First Chief, Beaver Village Council, Beaver; Ruth
Whod, Sel f, Tal keet na; Kelly Sw hart, Chi ef, Pol i ce
Depart ment , Pet er sbur g; St ephan G esbrecht, Pet er sburg
Borough, Petersburg; Shawn Eisele, Self, Juneau; Axel
Bur ghei m Sel f, Anchor age; Suzi Pear son, Executive
Director, Abused Wnen's Aid in Crisis (AWAIC), Anchorage;
Virginia MCaslin, Prograns Manager, Disability Abuse
Response Team AWAIC, Anchorage; Anna Brenninger, Menber,
Friends of the Library, Anchorage; Cathleen MLaughlin,
Director, Partners for Progress Re-Entry Center, Anchorage;
Regi na Manteufel, Creator, Back to Wrk Network, Anchorage;
Kyl ee  Si ngh, Sel f, Anchor age; Carolyn Sayre, Sel f,
Tal keetna; Melissa Martin, Self, Anchorage; WIIli Prittie,
Self, Sunshine; Leonard Menka, Self, Copper River; Jan
Wentnore, Self, Skagway; Shelby Surdick, Self, Skagway;
Rachel Ford, Taiya Inlet Watershed Council, Skagway; Dustin
Craney, Self, Skagway; C E. Furbish, Self, Skagway; Deb
Potter, Business Omner, Skagway; Jen Thuss, Self, Skagway;
Cory Thole, Self, Skagway; |srael Mahay, Mhay's Ri ver Boat
Service, Talkeetna; Elen WIf, Self, Talkeetna; Jeff
Trotter, Head Football Coach, East H gh School, Anchorage;
Mary Rasnussen, Self, Anchorage; Katherine Erickson, Self,
Wasilla; Rich Koch, City WMnager, Kenai; Deborah Mle,
Self, Anchorage; Kerry Maclane, Chairman, Southeast Soil
and Water Conservation District, Sitka; Dan Fauske, Board
Menber, Board of Directors, Cold Cimte Housing Research

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



Center, Anchorage; Tara Bicknell, Soboloff-MRae Veterans
Village and Wl | ness Center, Haines.

SUMVARY

CSSB 119( FI N)
BUDGET: CAPI TAL

CSSB 119(FIN) was HEARD and HELD in commttee for
further consideration.

#sb119
CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 119(FIN) am

"An Act naking and anendi ng appropriations, including
capital appropriations, supplenental appropriations,
reappropriations, and other appropriations; nmaking
appropriations to capitalize funds; and providing for
an effective date."

5:36:32 PM

Vice-Chair Neunan stated that testinmony from the Denal
Deaf Conmunity Center would be heard initially due to the
testifiers' early flight plans out of Juneau.

APUBLI C TESTI MONY

5:36: 53 PM

ANTHONY DEMARE, DENALI DEAF COVMUNI TY CENTER, ANCHORAGE
informed the conmttee that he worked with deaf children at
the Al aska State School for Deaf and Hard of Hearing. He
shared a story about the loss of his hearing as a young
boy. He stated that his parents enrolled him in a school
for the deaf, where he Ilearned Anerican Sign Language,
which allowed him to comunicate and succeed. He pointed
out that 20 thousand deaf and hard-of-hearing Al askans

required services. He explained that the Denali Deaf
Community Center hoped to provide services including
interpreter referral, enploynent, independent living skills

and social services for deaf people in one centra
| ocation. The centralized l|ocation would allow for cost
savi ngs.

5:40: 04 PM

House Fi nance Committee 4 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



MORGAN EVANS, DENALI DEAF COVWMUNITY CENTER, ANCHORAGE
di scussed the necessity of the Denali Deaf Comunity
Center. He believed that the center was full of possibility
in its ability to help deaf people overcome comrunication
barriers. He explained that he could speak wth his voice,
but sonme people had difficulty understanding him so he
preferred to use Anerican Sign Language to communi cate. He
believed that the center would enable support for other
har d- of - heari ng Al askans requiring help. He appreciated the
commttee nenbers' tinme and support.

Vice-Chair Neuman asked about a |location for the deaf
center and the anmount of funding requested.

Ms. Evans replied that a |ocation had been secured on Fifth
Avenue in Anchorage. The center needed $700,000 for the
facility. The entity was hoping to receive an additional $1
mllion for building renovations. The entity had plans in
pl ace. She di scussed other funds from the Al aska Foundation
and potentially from the Rasnuson Foundation. The entity
planned to neet wth the Minicipality of Anchorage to
di scuss other fund options as well.

TRACY PI FER, DENALI DEAF CENTER, ANCHORAGE, replied that a
| ocation and price had been determ ned. The |ocation had
been secured on Fifth Avenue in Anchorage Al aska. She
stated that the center required $700 thousand for the
facility and an additional $1 mllion for renovations. The
renovation plans were in place, but the next step was
securing the buil ding.

5:43:45 PM

PAM MUELLER- GUY, DENALI DEAF COMMUNI TY CENTER, JUNEAU (via
tel econference), testified in favor of the Denali Deaf
Community Center. She stated that 30 babies were born deaf
in the state every year. The parents of these children
required additional information about available resources.
She stated that people can fly into Juneau, which made the
process difficult. She nentioned wearly screening for
infants and all of the tools that would be available in one
centralized location. She w shed that deaf people had a
pl ace to go to access the necessary services.

5:47: 33 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



Ms. Pifer introduced herself again as the interpreter for
the testifiers. She stated her experience working wth deaf
and hard-of-hearing Al askans. She stated that the building
was in its third phase with the legislature having funded
phases one and twd. She stated that the building was
secured with a | ease-to-own agreenent and once the buil ding
was purchased, social enterprise businesses would occupy
the space. She described the center's many uses. The
project was only $1 mllion short of its goal. She stressed
that the conpletion of the goal would conplete any requests
to the legislature for future funding, as the enterprise
busi nesses would cover the ongoing costs. She spoke about
the needs of the parents of deaf children. She worked at
the Alaska State School for the Hard of Hearing. She
poi nted out that deaf and hard-of-hearing people had huge
gaps in their knowl edge without the ability to overhear
certain facts.

5:51:10 PM

JOE DI NNOCENZO, KODI AK SO L AND WATER CONSERVATI ON, KODI AK
(via tel econference), spoke about two CAPSIS requests, one
to fund the Alaska Association of Conservation D stricts
for $1.2 million, which provided adm nistration and payrol
for the Kodiak Soil and Water Conservation. He mnmentioned
anot her request of $213 thousand for the replacenent of
culverts that were blocking salnmon noving upstream He
noted that the upgrade would allow for a nore reliable
transportation system and pr onot e Kodi ak' s sal non
resour ces.

5:53: 57 PM

Vice-Chair Neuman noted that testinony sign-up would be
open until 8.

5:54:43 PM

NI CK SZABO, TREASURER, ALASKA SEARCH AND RESCUE, KODI AK
(via teleconference), stated that the Al aska Search and
Rescue Association (ASARA) was a non-profit affiliation of
48 volunteer organi zations statew de. He pointed out that
the volunteers answered <calls for help that conmonly
interrupted day jobs and famly life. He expressed
gratitude for the training funds received five years prior.
None of the organizations had paid enployees; every dollar
was spent on training, equipnment and supplies. He discussed

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



the need to train new people and provide advanced training
for those already in the program He worked under the
supervision of the Alaska State Troopers. He stated that
t he request would be greater w thout vol unteers.

5:57:21 PM

AW RUSSEL - JAMGOCHI N, KAWERAK I NC. , NOVE (via
tel econference), testified in favor of funding the Al aska
Native Cultural Center in a capital request for $1.9
mllion. The request was initially for library matching
funds. She spoke about the inportance of the center to the
community. She stated that the recession hit the comunity
hard, and the funding for the building allowed the
community to achieve partnership and collaboration that
added to the viability of None. She stated that the timng
was out of the city's control. She saw nuch funding
allocated to other itenms, while the cultural center
provided an inportant solution. She spoke about honoring
Ri chard Foster.

6: 01: 30 PM

Co-Chair Austerman stated that he and Co-Chair Stoltze had
duties that required his intermttent absence during the
heari ng.

6: 01: 56 PM

CLAY KOPLIN, CEO CORDOVA ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, CORDOVA
(via teleconference), testified in support of $6.5 mllion
for the Cordova Center, which was reduced to $1 mllion in
the CS. He stated that the center was part of a chain of
econom c investnents in Prince WIIliam Sound beginning with
the Whittier Tunnel. The Cordova Center was vetted by the
community for 20 years and net a variety of needs including
arts and convention space, energency response and disaster
preparation. He stated that the building would replace
sever al old buildings. The Cordova Center was near
conpl etion. He spoke about the need for larger space for
comuni ty gat heri ngs.

6: 04:32 PM

BRET BRADFORD, MEMBER, CORDOVA CITY COUNCI L, CORDOVA (via
tel econference), requested reinstatenent of $6.5 mllion in
mat ching funds to conplete the Cordova Center. He spoke

House Fi nance Committee 7 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



about the nmany comunity benefits the center would provide
including a new City Hall, library and nmuseum facilities.
The center would fulfill the need for economc diversity
and create econom c stinulus, which would affect the entire
conmuni ty.

6: 06: 24 PM

JENNI FER d BBI'NS, PRESI DENT, CORDOVA CHAMBER OF COMVERCE,
CORDOVA (via teleconference), requested the reinstatenent
of $6.5 nmillion in matching funds to conplete the Cordova
Center. She stated that the small businesses woul d conti nue
to succeed and fishernen would continue to fish in the
ar ea. The chanmber of comrerce deened the center an
i nportant asset.

6: 07: 38 PM

HEI DI CHAY, DI STRICT MANAGER, KENAI SOL AND WATER
CONSERVATI ON DI STRI CT, KENAI (via t el econference),
testified in favor of the $1.2 mllion request for the soi
and water conservation district. She noted that the
districts wer e | ocal | y- gover ned and st at e-aut hori zed

entities with responsibilities delegated by the Departnent
of Natural Resources under Alaska statute. She described
the district's responsibilities for conserving soil and
clean water. She nentioned the preservation of soil and
plants in the elementary schools in the Kenai Peninsula.
She stated that the organization was an essential part of
agricultural progress in the state.

6:10: 36 PM

KEN RAY, SELF, WASILLA (via teleconference) testified in
support of the Wasilla bypass. He stated that the bypass
woul d serve the entire valley with safety needs. The item
woul d provide early acquisitions with right of way. He
opi ned that the bypass would be a wi se use of state funds.
He advocated for noving the project along.

6:12: 22 PM

DICK ZOBEL, WASILLA SOL WATER CONSERVATION DI STRICT,
WASI LLA (via teleconference), testified in support of
funding for soil and water conservation. He found achieving
funding a struggle despite nultiple requests to the
Department of Natural Resources. He stated that he worked

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



as a farnmer and was a long-tinme nenber of the Wasilla Soi
and Water Conservation District. The conservation district
work in Wasilla was acconplished with volunteer efforts
with mniml funding through various grants. Basic funding
woul d allow the paynent of adm nistrative costs. He stated
that the organization's volunteers provided anple support.
He requested reinstatenent of the $1.2 million request.

6: 15: 49 PM

JEFF  CLARK, ALASKA TRAUMA CARE FUND, BETHEL (via
tel econference), testified in favor of funding for the
Al aska Trauma Care Fund. He stated that maintaining the
level 4 trauma certification was one use of the funding

Another use was in training the nurses and providers and
upkeep of equipnment. He noted that he trained nurses in
trauma nurse core curriculum to provide an advanced |eve

of care for trauma patients. He nentioned that 10 traunma
nurses were trained in the last week to aid those visiting
the energency room Equi pnent was also purchased with the
funding. The funding helped to purchase equipnent that
hel ped save lives in renote |ocations. He spoke about bl ood
war mers and ultrasound devices that were purchased with the
f undi ng.

6:19: 30 PM

EDWARD ALEXANDER, SECOND CHI EF FORT YUKON, FORT YUKON (via
tel econference), testified in favor of a funding request
for $100 thousand, which would allow the |everage of $287
thousand in additional funding from the Environnental
Protection Agency. He anticipated the creation of 3-6 jobs
in the community resulting from the presence of the
greenhouse. He stated that |ease agreenents were conpleted
for the project, which was 80 percent conplete.

6:21:32 PM

PJ SIMON, ALLAKAKET TRI BE, ALLAKAKET (via teleconference),
testified in support of a $500 thousand request for the new
Al | akaket nedical clinic. He stated that the center would
replace a dil apidated building. The funding would | everage
f undi ng from the Rasrmuson Foundat i on and anot her
[ undeci pherabl e] foundation's funding. He stated that the
nodern clinic would aid in decline of influenza and would
include running water and sewer. The clinic would bolster
the health and welfare of all Allakaket residents. He

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



mentioned that there were 300 tribal menmbers in the
Al | akaket tri be.

6: 23: 39 PM

LI SA CHARLES, NEWIOK  TRADI TI ONAL  COUNCI L, NEWIOK  (vi a
tel econference), testified in support of the critical needs
for her community. The three sections of needs included
relocation for $2.8 mllion, public facilities for $945
t housand and public safety for $125 thousand.

6:24:57 PM

CLAY WALKER, DENALI BOROUGH MAYOR, HEALY (via
tel econference), testified in support of enmergency nedica

service funding for his borough that hosted 400 thousand
visitors annually. The volunteer fire departnent regularly
transported patients in their anmbul ance over 220 mles to
Fai r banks. The borough requested funding for a new
anbul ance, which was wdely supported as the borough's
nunber one priority totaling $118 thousand. He nentioned a
second request for $170 thousand for an energy efficiency
project that would pay for itself in less than two years.
The project would plunb the cold boiler heat from Tri-
Val | ey School to the elenmentary wing heated by fuel oil. An
energy audit estimated annual savings of approximtely $90
thousand resulting from the project. He added that the
Denali Borough was absent from the capital budget, so he
urged the conmttee to consider the lasting benefits of the
requests.

6:27:13 PM

JEFF SMEENK, SELF, PALMER (via teleconference) testified in
support of the $1.2 million request for the statew de soi
and water conservation program He shared the use of the
$60 thousand allocated to Palmer, for prograns totaling
$300 thousand. He noted that he worked with invasive weeds
that threatened salnon habitats in 2013 along wth working
with the Departnent of Environnental Conservation to reduce
the hydrocarbons in the water resulting from recreationa
boati ng. He spoke about 2014 and his work with the United
States Departnent of Agriculture to decrease soil |oss from
wi nd erosion.

6:29: 23 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



BERNICE JOHN, NEWOK TRADITIONAL COUNCIL, NEWOK (via
tel econference), testified in favor of requests for public
safety needs $125 thousand and $945 thousand, and
relocation items $2.8 million. Al needs were critical for
the community. She stated that a new water source was
needed for the next 2-5 years.

6: 30: 46 PM

REX WRI GLEY, SELF, DELTA JUNCTION (via teleconference),
spoke in favor of funding for the 12 soil and water
conservation districts of $1.2 mllion. He noted that the

district provided support for Al askan agriculture including
nutrient and pest recommendations for farners. Additional
responsibilities included the control of noxious weeds in
Al aska and conpilation of agricultural research and
addressing erosion and flooding concerns. The district
provi ded the state the opportunity to growits own food.

6: 32: 38 PM

KEN MARSH, UPPER SUSITNA SO L AND WATER CONSERVATI ON
TRAPPER CREEK (via teleconference), spoke in favor of the
$1.2 mllion request for Al askan  soil and water
conservation districts. He thanked the conmttee for the
prior two years' support. He noted that the funding would
allow each of the 12 districts to continue aiding the
conservation needs of the state. He stated that the
district saved tinme and noney by providing efficient and
vital work. He provided an exanple of an effort working
Wi th teenagers clearing streans and trails.

6: 35:24 PM

TODD PETTIT, PALMER SO L WATER CONSERVATION, PALMER (via
tel econference), spoke in favor of $1.2 mllion in funding
for the 12 state soil and water conservation districts.. He
stated that the funding would be distributed throughout the
state. The grassroots comunity funded all districts to
prevent soil erosion and inprove water quality. He spoke
about issues with funding regardi ng weed over grow h.

6:40: 02 PM

ROBI N WARD, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference) testified
in favor of restoration of non-profit funding for the
Al aska craftsman home program and the cold clinmate housing

House Fi nance Committee 11 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



research center. She wished to utilize best practices and
appropriate technology for the unique climate in Al aska.
She stated that research, reports and information were
provided by the center. The Al aska craftsman hone program
allowed for distribution of the center's information. The
distribution relied on the two entities that were not
included in this year's capital budget. She requested an
additional $750 thousand for the cold clinate research
center and $250 thousand for the Alaska craftsman hone
pr ogram

6:42:44 PM

CYNTHI A FRANKLI N, ANCHORAGE MUNI Cl PAL PROSECUTOR, ANCHORACGE
(via teleconference), supported funding for the Al aska
Donestic Violence and Sexual Assault Intervention project
for $850 t housand. She  spoke about t he proj ect,
headquartered in Anchorage and wutilizing the Anchorage
police departnent, serving victins statew de. The goal of
the project was increasing victims safety and offender
accountability. She stated that she had excellent data
supporting the goal acconplishnment. The program rel ocated
victinms. The project had statew de inpact and was shown to
be effective.

6:44:54 PM

JAMES TRUWP, SELF, TALKEETNA (via teleconference) testified
in opposition to the $32.7 mllion in funding for the
Susi t na Dam proj ect.

6:45: 31 PM

CARRIE LONGORI A, ANCHORAGE MUNICIPAL HEALTH AND HUMAN
SERVI CES  DEPARTMENT, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in favor of $850 thousand in funding for the
Al aska Donestic Violence And Sexual Assault Intervention
program funding. She noted that the statew de program
served over 7,100 victinms from 38 communities. She stated
that the programis federal funding had been cut. She
mentioned the partnership for victims support and
relocation for wutilities, food, clothing, etc. She stated
that the funding would provide nuch needed services for
victinms in Al aska.

6:47:22 PM

House Fi nance Committee 12 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



CAT BULLI NGTON, SELF, WASILLA (via teleconference), spoke
in favor of $1.2 mllion in funding for the 12 state soil
and water conservation districts. She spoke in support of
the work to dispense funds and carry out projects. She
spoke about the payroll and delivery of conservation
education. She stated that financial support was provided
for the 12 state districts with one full-tinme and one part-
time enployee. She explained that Al aska was unique and
brought know edge to the stewards of the planet and
guar di ans of natural resources.

6:49:42 PM

PEGGY MCLAUGHLIN, PORT DI RECTOR, CTY OF UNALASKA (via
tel econference), testified in support of two separate
requests. The city requested the purchase of a fourth
engine for the powerhouse. The <city purchased a new
generator for the community. The request of $4.5 mllion
would allow for installation of the engine to neet the
grow ng demand of the city. The second request for the
Unal aska Marine Center position 3 and 4 replacenent. The
city requested $27 mllion of a $40 mllion project to
upgrade the Unalaska Marine Center. She nentioned the
future for offshore drilling utilizing the center as a
stagi ng area.

6:51: 54 PM

JEFF WELTZIN, TANANA CHH EFS CONFERENCE, TANANA, requested
funding for 10 capital inprovenent projects. He explained
his practice of |everaging federal and foundation dollars.
He noted that eight clinics had been built throughout the
interior by leveraging $2.6 mllion in state funding with
$15 mllion of federal and foundation funding. He added
that of six nultipurpose comunity centers were also
constructed throughout Interior Alaska. He listed the 10
requested projects that also |everaged federal and
foundation dollars.

Representative Mnoz requested a copy of M. Wltzin's
letter.

6:54:59 PM

JACK HEBERT, PRESIDENT, CEO, COLD CLI MATE HOUSI NG RESEARCH
CENTER, testified about his statew de organization founded
by the Al aska State Honebuilding Association 14 years ago.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



He stated that the center affected lives throughout the
state. State funding was inportant and he nentioned his
CAPSI S request nunber, 62130. He nentioned sone nenbers of
the center's Board of Directors. He nentioned an energy-
efficient building built at the University of Al aska. He
explained that the center leased land from the university
as a private corporation.

6:57: 32 PM

JAMES MARCUS, DI STRICT MANAGER, SOUTHEAST SO L AND WATER
CONSERVATI ON COUNCI L, spoke in favor of $1.2 mllion in
funding for the 12 state soil and water conservation
districts. He pointed out t hat the districts were
classified as public-private partnershi ps under the purview
of the Department of Natural Resources. He nentioned the
district's goals including seafood processing and storage.

Three goals of the council included regional food security,

shellfish farmng and invasive species nmanagenent. He
menti oned the goal of eradicating noxious plants in rura

comuni ties throughout Al aska.

7:01:26 PM

JAMES SULLI VAN, SOUTHEAST ALASKA CONSERVATI ON COUNCI L,
JUNEAU, testified against the $35 mllion funding for the
Juneau Access Road. He felt that the road would be anobng
one of the nobst dangerous in the country. He pointed out
that the environnmental inpact statenent (EIS) was not
scheduled for release wuntil June. He felt that the
| egislature should wait until the project was presented as
a final product, before designating funds for the road. He
stressed that the road was designed to end at an unnmanned
ferry termnal, and restated the danger regarding that
i ssue.

Representati ve Thonpson asked for a copy of M. Sullivan's
statenent. M. Sullivan agreed to provide that information.

7:05:16 PM

LORRAI NE KING ELECTED OFFIC AL, EKWX VILLAGE COUNCIL,
EKWOK (via teleconference), testified in support of the
$204,000 for the Ekwok Landfill Access Road. She renarked
that over ten years of planning occurred in order to
formul ate the proposal. She stated that the 115 foot bridge
would cross Clutha Creek, and was critical to access the

House Fi nance Committee 14 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



landfill site. She remarked that the proposal was for $2.68

mllion, and was separated into several conponents for
material, freight, and installation. She stated that the
existing landfill was scheduled to close, because it did
not neet federal requirenents and was too close to housing.
The existing landfill was over capacity, suffered from

wi ndblown litter, and open burning. The dunpsite did not
have an Al askan Departnment of Environmental Conservation
(DEC) Cass Il permt, and was an existing hazard to the
community. The site was included in the high-threat site on
the Indian Health Service Report to Congress on Tribal Open
Dunp Sanitation Deficiency List. She felt that Ekwok had a
good plan to manage solid waste to protect the natural
envi ronment and human heal t h.

7: 09: 18 PM

RONALD K. I NOQUYE, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference)
testified in support of funding for SLAM and other library
upgrade projects. He stated that the walls for the SLAM
building were fabricated in Fairbanks, and then installed
into the museum in Juneau. He stated that the fabrication
of the walls established a new industry in Fairbanks, which
enpl oyed about 30 people. He encouraged the commttee to
fully-fund the conpletion of the new SLAM bui | di ng.

7:10: 39 PM

RONDA SCHLUVBOHM, BOREAL ALASKA — LEARNI NG,  ADAPTATI ON,
PRODUCTI ON  ( BAKLAP), FAIRBANKS (via teleconference),
testified in support of $700,000 for BAKLAP's One Tree
program She taught a 2-3 class just south of Fairbanks, in
the heart of the Boreal Forest. She stated that the area
was a beautiful place to teach and raise children. The
community was 50 mles from Fairbanks, so the students were

not given the sane opportunities as those living 1in
Fai rbanks. She stated that field trips to Fairbanks
required hours of travel, which left for limted time for

educati onal opportunities. She announced that scientists
visited her classroom once a week, which was possible
t hrough BAKLAP, which changed the dynamic of the science
program in her school. She stated that Zack Mers, one of
the visiting scientists, spent an hour a week in her
cl assroom teaching the children about birch trees.

7:13: 53 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



LOU BROWN, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference), urged the
elimnation of funding for the Road to Anbler. She felt
that the $8.5 mllion designated for the project could be
used for other worthy projects. She testified in support of
reinstating $2 mllion for the Wodstove Change-out Program
for the Fairbanks North Star Borough, in order to inprove
the borough's air quality. The poor air quality in
Fai rbanks has negatively inpacted the health of children
and adults. She noted that there was a large anount of
funds in the capital budget designated for the replacenent
of the heat and power facility at the University of
Fai rbanks (UAF). She felt that the power plant was
necessary, but felt that a new facility should be built to
convert from a coal burning facility to a natural gas
burning facility. She felt that there should be a focus
away from burning coal, in order to continue to inprove the
air quality in Fairbanks.

7:15:31 PM

CHRI STI NA- ALEX LI AKCS, SELF, FAI RBANKS (via tel econference)
testified against funding for the new coal power plants and
coal mning. She shared that she had devel oped asthma in
Fai r banks, and her doctor stated that it was comon for
people to develop asthma in Fairbanks, because of the poor
air quality. She noved away from Fairbanks, and her asthna
i mproved. She felt that the legislature should focus on
alternatives and solutions to the air quality problem She
testified in support of reinstating the $2 mllion for the
Fai r banks Wodst ove Exchange Program She spoke agai nst the
proposed heat and power plant at UAF, and felt that
students' tuition should not increase to fund a project
that proposed a great health risk. She felt that the
fundi ng coul d be used for health and educati on projects.

7:17:40 PM

KAI TLIN VADLA, SELF, KENAI (via teleconference), testified
agai nst the Susitna Dam and the Anbler Road, and felt that
the noney could be used for itenms with a greater purpose
She al so spoke against the $245 nmillion for the new coal
power plant at UAF. She felt that it would provide a poor
return on investnent, especially for a university that had
a cutting edge international arctic research center and
cold climate housing research center. She felt that the
university would be investing in eighteenth century fuel
sources. She felt that the noney should be used to retrofit

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



the old plant, and invest the $100 mllion on energy
ef ficiency inprovenents to the buil dings on canpus.

7:18:53 PM

ZACH MEYERS, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference) testified
in support of $700,000 for BAKLAP funding. He announced
that BAKLAP was granted funding in 2011, and he was a
participant in the program since its inception. He was a
construction designer, and he was assigned to work wth
teachers throughout the district to develop projects and
| essons that were engaging to both mnd and body. He stated
t hat BAKLAP had worked with over twelve schools and 800
students throughout the district. He announced that many
students approached him to thank him for the work of
BAKLAP. He felt that the work was innovative, exciting, and
menor abl e.

7:21: 28 PM

ANDREW ALLABY, BAKLAP, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference),
spoke in support of funding for BAKLAP. He understood that
the budget climte was challenging, but felt that the

program should be funded until its conpletion. He stressed
t hat wood biomass energy was increasingly vital to Al askan
conmmuni ties and econom es, and Al askans needed a

sustai nable foundation to raise the next generation's
bi omass fuel. He quoted the Al aska Constitution, and shared
that there was a nandate for the nmanagenent of the natura
resources for sustained yield. He felt that BAKLAP had a
denonstrated capacity to bring young Alaskans, state
agencies, and the University of Alaska (UA) together to
ensure that the state nmet the responsibility outlined in
the constitution. He stated that he was a current UAF
student, studying forestry, so he understood the grow ng
i nportance of Alaska's forest resource.

7:23:15 PM

Bl RCH PAVELSKY, VOLUNTEER, BAKLAP ONE TREE, FAI RBANKS (via
tel econference) testified in support of funding for BAKLAP.
He stated that he volunteered to help mddle schools
understand birch logs through crafting knitting needles,
with the intent to understand tree structure. He felt that
the analytical thinking required for the project was a
nmet aphor that could be applied to science, engineering,

House Fi nance Committee 17 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



career choice, and elsewhere. He stressed that BAKLAP
encouraged that kind of analytical thinking.

7:24:28 PM

JIM SACKETT, CEO, TOGHOTTHELE CORPORATI QN, FAIRBANKS (via
tel econference), spoke in support of funding the bridge
over the Nenana River. He explained that the bridge was
currently under construction, and would connect the road to
the Parks Hi ghway. The project was partially funded wth
$6.5 mllion through a voter approved bond, and it was
estimated that there was an additional $1.5 mllion to
conplete the bridge to provide access to the Nenana gas
basin. He remarked that the bridge would access UAF | and
Mental Health Trust |and, Departnment of Natural Resources
(DNR) land, and Tanana Valley State Forest |and.

7:25:49 PM
GLENN JUDAY, DI RECTOR, BAKLAP, FAI RBANKS (via
tel econference), testified in support of funding for

BAKLAP. He stated that the program was devel oped to neet
the denmand for wood bionass energy research. He renarked
t hat BAKLAP provi ded education through hands-on experience,
and assists the state forest to neet the demand for wood
bi omass energy. He announced that BAKLAP was |aunched
through a recent appropriation, and explained that the
project was on-tine and on-budget. The program had already
produced sone inportant new discoveries, including the
first systematic assessnment of forest regrowh on state
harvest units in the Al aska Boreal Forest. He stated that
the current funding request would support the conpletion of
the analysis and publication of the results of the first
finding. He announced that BAKLAP had uncovered inportant
information regarding forest insects on growh, and the
funding would initiate devel opnment of predictive tools for
future forest yields. He stated that BAKLAP had identified
which state forest nmanagenent practices were producing
acceptable tree-growth, and the requested funding would
conpare costs and identify which state forest practices
produce an acceptable return on investnent. He shared that
BAKLAP was a partnership with DNR, UA, and the Fairbanks
North Star Borough School District.

7:29: 07 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



LAUREN  LYNCH, GRADUATE  STUDENT, UAF, FAI RBANKS (via
tel econference), spoke in support of funding for BAKLAP.
She stated that BAKLAP provided an opportunity for her to
work with people of all different ages, and share sone of
her education. She stated that she had worked and | earned
fromincredi ble teachers through the program She observed
that nmany elenentary, mddle, and high school students had
benefitted from the BAKLAP program She remarked that
students had used many of their skills in other aspects of
their lives, and shared sone personal stories.

7:31:51 PM

JOHN  RI NGSTAD, FAI RBANKS NORTH STAR BOROUGH  SCHOOL
DI STRICT, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference), testified in
support of funding for the conpletion of the Barnette
Magnet School renovation.

7:32: 36 PM

LUKE HOPKINS, MAYOR, FAIRBANKS NORTH STAR BOROUGH (via
tel econference), spoke in support of various economc
devel opnent  projects. He specifically spoke to $11.2
mllion for phase 4 for the Barnette Magnet School. He
encouraged support for the $2 mllion for air quality
mtigation. He wurged support for the UAF power plant
repl acenent funding. He also testified in support of
funding the UAF engineering building conpletion. He stated
that 40 percent of the econony in Fairbanks was based on
the mlitary, and he encouraged as nuch as $250,000 to
match the local contribution to mlitary stabilization. He
urged support of funding for BAKLAP, and educationa

opportunities through the STEM program He wurged the
addi tion of $400,000 for DCCED for econon c devel opnent. He
encouraged support of funding the statewide |library
construction grants.

7:36:17 PM

MERRI LL SANFORD, MAYOR, CTY AND BOROUGH OF JUNEAU

testified in support of the Juneau water project funding

He also spoke in support of SLAM funding. He also urged
support of funding for the Juneau Access Project. He felt
that speaking against the road would result in a poor
econom ¢ decision. He stressed that roads were an economc
driver for the state, just like the Trans-Al aska Pipeline
System ( TAPS) .

House Fi nance Conmmittee 19 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



7:38: 30 PM

DAVID SELUNI S-MESSIR, RURAL ENERGY COORDI NATOR, TANANA
CHI EFS CONFERENCE, FAI RBANKS (via t el econference),
testified in support of the Fort Yukon Passive Solar
Greenhouse. He stated that the project was the first of its
kind north of the Arctic Circle, and would allow the
comunity to heat a greenhouse for |ocal food production
for six nonths of the year with the use of an innovative
passive solar heating system The system used no oil or
wood, but just the sun's rays, insulation, and thernal
storage. He stated that the project had |everaged over
$300, 000 worth of EPA and Departnment of Energy funding, was
over 80 percent conplete, and was slotted to conplete the
upcom ng sunmer with the proposed funding. The |ocal school
district already had plans to purchase produce from private
growers in Fort Yukon to serve in school lunches in 2015

and the Elders and Nutrition Program was planning to
purchase fresh produce for elder comunity nenbers across
t he Yukon Fl ats.

7:40:24 PM

SARAH OBED, DOYON LIM TED, FAIRBANKS (via tel econference),
testified in support of the $100,000 for the Fort Yukon
G eenhouse, and $1.5 nmillion for the Cty of Nenana bridge
across the Nenana River. She remarked that the bridge would
access UAF |and, Mental Health Trust I|and, Departnent of
Natural Resources (DNR) land, and Tanana Valley State
Forest | and.

7:41:21 PM

M KE MJSI CK, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference), thanked
the commttee for including funding for a new power plant
at UAF, but felt that it was a "black hole" for funding
other worthy projects. He stressed that there were air
quality issues in Fairbanks caused by wood burning. He
encouraged the commttee to reinstate funds to deal wth
the air quality issue. He remarked that he was at UAF
before the current power plant was installed, and shared
that the power plant was a technological Ieap from
extrenely dirty coal power to cleaner coal power. He
remarked that there were even better technologies to allow
for burning of the nost ecologically friendly fuel source.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 20 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



He also urged support of funding for the Barnette Magnet
School renovati on.

7:44:09 PM

TAMM GANGULI, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference), spoke
in support of funding phase 4 of the Barnette Magnet School
renovati on. She shared that she and other conmmunity nenbers
had submtted witten testinony. She felt that the project
was inportant for enhancing children's health and safety.
She felt that funding the last phase of the renovation
woul d save noney for Fairbanks and the state. She remarked
that there were efficiencies in the project that would al so
save the state noney.

Representative WIson announced that she had read the
submtted letters.

7:45:11 PM

LAURA COMER, SELF, ANCHORACE (via teleconference) testified
in support of funding to support clean air in Fairbanks

She announced that, according to the Anerican Lung
Associ ation, Fairbanks was the ninth nost polluted city for
short-term particle pollution; and was tied fourteenth for
the nost year-round pollution. She stressed that funding
for air quality mtigation prograns, such as the Wod Stove
Repl acenment Program helped to curb energy costs, reduced
fuel cost for owners, and inproved the air quality for
residents. She expressed concern over the renoval of
funding for the replacenent program while adding noney for
a new coal power plant at UAF. She remarked that coal power
and old wood stoves were |linked to asthma attacks, |ung
damage, increased risk of respiratory infection, and
premature death. She urged the legislature to fully return
$2 million for the Fairbanks North Star Wodstove Exchange
pr ogram

7:47:01 PM

DI ANE HUTCHI SON, FINANCE CHAI R, ASSEMBLY, FAI RBANKS NORTH
STAR BCOROUGH ASSEMBLY, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference),
appreciated the inclusion of a new heat and power plant at
UAF, but enphasized that it should be a statew de project.
She remarked that UA hel ped everyone in the state, not just
Fai rbanks. She wurged the legislature to fully return $2

House Fi nance Committee 21 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



mllion for the Fairbanks North Star Wodstove Exchange
program

7:48:57 PM

PATRI CE LEE, CITIZENS FOR CLEAN AR FAI RBANKS (via
tel econference), urged the reinstatenent of funding for the
Whodst ove Change Qut program She testified against funding
for the new coal-powered plant at UAF. She expressed
concern over the renoval of funding for the replacenent
program while adding noney for a new coal power plant at
UAF. She remarked that coal power and old wood stoves were

linked to asthma attacks, |lung damage, increased risk of
respiratory infection, and premature death. She urged the
| egislature to fully return $2 mllion for the Fairbanks

North Star Wodstove Exchange program

7:51:26 PM

DON GRAY, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference) testified in
support of funding the UAF power plant. He stressed that
the project was essential. He announced that the focus on
power should be on nore cost effective strategies wth
research and design vetted solutions as they are
di scovered. He felt that attenpting current ineffective
energy solutions would be costly to the state. He felt that
a coal power plant, which was as clean as science could
produce, at an affordable price should be the current
solution. He remarked that there would continue to be
di scoveries of practical ways to obtain energy sources |ike
wind, tidal, earth-heat differential produced power, and
sol ar at affordable prices.

7:55:54 PM

JOHN EBERHART, MAYOR, CTY OF FAI RBANKS (via
t el econference), spoke in support of $250,000 for comunity
service patrol. He explained that there was recent funding
of an extra $75,000 from the City of Fairbanks to expand
the service to 18 hours a day, 7 days a week. He stressed
that it was a public safety issue for the city. He also
spoke in support of funding for a replacenent of an
anbul ance. The 2003 anbul ance needed replacenent, along
with two chest conpression systens, and three cardiac
monitors. Through nutual aid and automatic aid agreenents,
the replacenent would affect the entire Fairbanks area. He

House Fi nance Committee 22 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



announced that the current anbulance was over ten years
ol d, and had over 66,000 m | es.

7:57:30 PM

ADAM KRYNI CKI, EMPLOYEE, OFFICE OF | NTELLECTUAL PROPERTY
AND COMVERCI ALI ZATI ON, UAF, FAI RBANKS (via tel econference),
testified in support of funding for high tech devel opnment
in the state. He announced that, through the Al aska
Technol ogy Transfer Partnership, there was an increase in
i nvention disclosures at UAF. He announced that UAF had the
anount of invention and activity that was suited for a $100

mllion a year research university. He remarked that the
reason for the success was UAF's ability to engage its
capacity for collaboration, smal | busi ness i nnovation
research agreements, and were licensing nore technol ogy
than it ever had. He announced that, prior to 2011, UAF
only licensed one technology. Currently, UAF licensed 37

technologies. O those 37, ten went to Al askan businesses
with four start-up businesses.

7:59:47 PM

JUNE THOVASSON, SELF, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference)
testified in support of reinstatenment of the $2 mllion for
the Wod Stove change out program She felt that Fairbanks
was |osing valuable residents because of the poor air
quality in Fairbanks. She stated that she was a physician's
assistant, and had patients who were unable to exercise
because of air quality. She also spoke against funding for
the road to Anbler, because she felt the residents did not
support the road to Anbler. She also spoke in support of
the proposed power plant at UAF, and encouraged the
inclusion of funding the power plant's capability to use
nat ural gas.

8:01: 07 PM

RON YARNELL, OWER, ALL ABOUT ADVENTURE, FAIRBANKS (via
tel econference) testified against the funding for the
Anbl er Road. He felt that the noney could be used for nore
worthy projects in Fairbanks such as the Fairbanks d ean
Air Initiative or the UAF engineering building. He felt
that the proposed road, a many other roads, were often not
locally supported and only benefitted a limted nunber of
conpani es and corporations at the expense of Alaskans. He
stated that Nova Copper was a subsidiary of Nova Gold, and

House Fi nance Conmmittee 23 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



t he conpanies supporting the Anbler Road, had a terrible
track record of failed mnes throughout the state.

8:02: 28 PM

DAVI D VENENBURG, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, DOANTOMN ASSOCI ATI ON
OF FAI RBANKS, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference), echoed the
remarks of Mayor Eberhart. He restated that effectiveness
of the community service patrol (CSP) in Fairbanks. He
stated that the funding for the patrol was the top
| egislative priority for the Cty of Fairbanks. The CSP had
taken approximately 1300 publicly inebriated individuals
into protective custody to obtain nedical care. He remarked
that public drunkenness in Fairbanks was non-crimnal, so
therefore the CSP allowed for police and fire patrol to
nmonitor crimnal activity.

8:04:27 PM

ROBERT SILVERTSEN, MEMBER, CTY COUNCIL, KETCH KAN (via
tel econference), spoke in support of funding for the Swan
Lake Reservoir Expansion Project. The Swan Lake Project
recently underwent a vigorous public vetting process, when
was selected by Ketchikan and was considered the top
community priority. The Gty of Ketchikan also passed a
separate f or mal resol ution strongly supporting t he
devel opnment of the project. He stated that the hydro-power
enhancement project was critical infrastructure that was
vital to the city, econonmic growh, and prosperity. The
Cty of Ketchikan currently supplenented hydro-power
production with diesel generation, in order to neet its
annual energy requirenents. The cost of diesel generation
was approximately 24 cents per kilowatt hour, but the Swan
Lake project would directly address that cost burden by
alleviating Ketchikan's diesel dependency wth providing
inmportant rate stability.

8:06:47 PM

DAN BOCKHORST, MANAGER, KETCH KAN GATEWAY BOROUGH (via
tel econference), testified in support of $12.3 mllion for
the Swan Lake Reservoir Expansion Project and related that
it was the Ketchi kan Borough's nunber 1 priority. He stated
that the project was essential to the continuing recovery
of Ketchikan's econony, which had taken a huge blow from
the loss of tinber related jobs in the 1990s. He di scussed
the lingering inpacts of the closure of the Ketchikan pulp

House Fi nance Committee 24 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



mll and pointed out that the current school enrollnment in
Ket chi kan was 25 percent bel ow the peak of when the borough
suffered the loss of the mll. He stated that it was
important to Ketchikan that it helped support its own
projects and observed that the Ketchikan Gateway Borough
and the City of Ketchikan had levied and collected nore
than $35 mllion on local taxes annually; additionally they
had incurred nore than $190 million in debt. He offered
that Ketchikan residents were willing to make significant
investnments in public facilities for schools, hospitals,
utilities, airports, fire stations, |Ilibraries, harbors,
recreation facilities, and hydroelectric facilities. He
poi nted out that SEAPA had also incurred significant debt
for its public facilities and urged the addition of funding
for the project.

8: 09: 24 PM

TREY ACTESON, CEO, SOQUTHEAST ALASKA PONER AGENCY ( SEAPA),
KETCHI KAN (via teleconference), spoke in support of the
funding request for $12.3 nillion for the Swan Lake
Reservoir Expansion Project. He stated that the existing
reservoir had volatile inflows and that it had spilled
wat er al nbost every year since its construction in the early
80s; additionally, spill water over the dam was energy that
was |lost forever. He stated that raising the dam would
all ow SEAPA to capture the clean renewable energy and use
it to displace expensive diesel generation. He observed
that one of the key findings in the Southeast |Integrated
Resource Plan was the lack of energy storage and noted that
the Swan Lake project would address that need by providing
an additional 25 percent in active storage to the
reservoir; the storage increase would be achieved by
raising the crest of the dam by 6 feet. He reported that
the project would effectively raise the overall reservoir
height by 15 feet and that it was an easy choice for his
region because the power house, transmission lines, and
ot her expensive infrastructure were already in place.

8:12: 25 PM

Bl LL LEI GHTY, BUSI NESS OMER, JUNEAU, spoke agai nst funding
for the Juneau Access Project, and he felt that the noney
could be wused for projects wth greater cost benefit
ratios. He stated that he had been a resident of Juneau for
40 years, and there were three prevailing issues that
Juneau had faced in that tinme: 1) capital nove anxiety; 2)

House Fi nance Conmmittee 25 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



the nyth that a road would nake Juneau nore anchored; and
3) the distraction that the lack of road caused |ack of
economc investnent. He felt that the road would enhance
capi tal nove anxiety, because of accessibility.

8:16: 46 PM

JAN DAWE, BAKLAP, JUNEAU, testified in support of the
BAKLAP program funding. She echoed the coments of M.
Juday and M. Lewis. She stated that there were six people
in the Fairbanks Legislative Information Ofice (LIO who
were in support of the program Those individuals would not
be testifying in the current neeting, but they had
submtted letters of support (copies on file). She remarked
that the educational conponent of BAKLAP was called "K-20",
because the power of the university was used to work with
K-12 schools. She stated that over the last 18 nonths,
BAKLAP had worked with over 30 teachers in 12 Fairbanks
North Star schools, and over 850 students. During the
summer, BAKLAP offered K-12 teachers continuing education
courses. She stated that the BAKLAP nethodol ogy i ncluded
integrated curriculum which included science, technol ogy,
engi neering, and mth (STEM and art instruction. She
stressed that the arts provided a gateway to integrated
curricul um

8:20:49 PM

NANCY SEAMOUNT, TEACHER, JUNEAU, testified in support of
$225,000 for the Community in Schools (CI'S) program She
stated that she had two other people with her who also
woul d be testifying on the sanme topic. She announced that
the staff of Juneau Douglas H gh School overwhel mngly
supported the program She renmarked that the CS site
coordinator used his flexibility to intervene in school
failure. She stated that the coordinator tracked down the
failing students, and pushed those students to pass their
cl asses resulting in on-time graduation. She announced t hat
there was data outlining success rates, but remarked that
there was not tine to share that data. She stated that C'S
was the |argest and nost effective comrunity-based drop-out
prevention program in the country, and used an evidence-
based nodel. She shared that 99 percent of C'S targeted
students stayed in school.

8:22:55 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 26 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



DOUG BLANC, SITE COCRDI NATOR, C'S, JUNEAU DOQUG.AS HI GH
SCHOCL, JUNEAU testified in support of funding for C'S. He
stated that CIS was inportant to Juneau schools and Juneau
students. The program had a successful partnership with the
Juneau School District for five years. He stated that CS
was a drop-out prevention program that operated on a
nati onal nodel. Wen the program was fully staffed at each
Juneau high school, each school experienced at l|least a 10
percent increase in their graduation rate. The CS staff
had worked in local high schools and m ddle schools, and
provi ded academ c and non-academ c services to hundreds of
students. The CI'S program worked with partner organi zations
to provide students to tutoring, ment ori ng, credit
recovery, nental health services, after school prograns,
and i n-school prograns.

8:24:18 PM

BEN CORNELL, SELF, JUNEAU, spoke in support of $220,000 for
ClS. He stated that the funding would help alleviate the
stress of dealing with high school drop-outs in the
judicial system He remarked that he and his daughter had
observed the individuals in downtown Juneau, who clearly
had a drug problem He renmarked that nany young people were
living honeless in downtown Juneau, and felt that a high
school diploma or attention while they were attending
school may have hel ped these people to stay away from that
lifestyle.

8:26:47 PM

Rl CHARD DAVENHAUWMER, MEMBER, PARI SH COUNCI L, ST. N CHOLAS
RUSSI AN ORTHODOX CHURCH, JUNEAU, urged the reinstatenent of
funding for preservation work for St. N cholas Russian
Orthodox Church. He stated that the funding had been
renoved in the Senate Finance Conmittee. He understood the
current financial situation in the state, and hoped that
the state would consider adding the project to the budget.
He felt that the funding would denonstrate state support
for preservation of an inportant historic site in Juneau.
He felt that even a small anount of |egislative support
would help the parish raise additional matching funds. He
announced t hat he had some addi ti onal backgr ound
i nformation on the project.

8:28:15 PM

House Fi nance Committee 27 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



SALLY WLSON, SELF, JUNEAU, testified in opposition to the
Juneau Access Project. She felt that the road out of Juneau
woul d not enhance Juneau's econom c climate, and would not
increase the population or visitors to Juneau. She felt
that the consideration of the geol ogical and physical risks
shoul d preclude any consideration of the project. She felt
that the cost benefit ratio was outrageous. She felt that
the funding could be used for nore worthy and beneficial
projects to the state.

8:30: 27 PM

DEE POND, ALASKA ASSOCI ATI ON OF CONSERVATION DI STRICTS, BIG
LAKE (via teleconference), testified in support of the
addition of the Alaska Association of Conservati on
Districts' request of $1.2 nillion into the budget. She
stated that the noney woul d be distributed anong the twelve
state soil and water districts across the state. She
announced that some of +the districts would cease to
function wthout the funding. The districts provide work on
stream bank restoration, wldlife habitat, salnon habitat,
culvert replacenent, trails, control of invasive plants,
forest regeneration, and provided technical assistance to
| and users in both rural and urban environnents.

8:32: 56 PM

MELI SSA  CQADY, VEMBER, TALKEETNA  COVMMUNI TY  COUNCI L,
TALKEETNA (via teleconference), testified in opposition to
the Susitna Watana Dam She felt that $5 billion was a poor
investnment in Alaska's energy future, and felt that itens
that were not included in the Al aska Energy Authority's
request could increase the cost of the dam by several
billion dollars.

8:33:41 PM

JASON MAYRAND, MAYOR, CITY OF NENANA (via tel econference),
He explained that the bridge was currently under
construction, and would connect the road to the Parks
H ghway. The project was partially funded with $6.5 mllion
through a voter approved bond, and it was estimated that
there was an additional $1.5 mllion to conplete the bridge
to provide access to the Nenana gas basin. He remarked that
the bridge would access UAF |and, Mental Health Trust |and,
Departnment of Natural Resources (DNR) land, and Tanana
Val l ey State Forest |and.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 28 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



8:35: 33 PM

LYNN BATEMAN, DI RECTOR, COFFMAN COVE COWUNI TY LI BRARY
COFFMAN COVE (via teleconference), testified in support of
funding for the library construction project request. She
stated that the Coffrman Cove Comrunity Library was |isted

nunber two on the request list along with Wsilla, None,
and Thorn Bay. The total request was $12.7 mllion, and
each of the communities requesting library funding had

their matching funds in order. Al of the libraries had
worked with the Foraker G oup, and were shovel -ready. The
Cof fman Cove Community Library plan added the library to
the existing post office and existing clinic, which would

utilize the heat punp well source system that already
exi st ed.
8:37: 44 PM

CARCLYN BATEMAN, SELF, COFFMAN COVE (via teleconference),
echoed the conments of Ms. Lynn Bateman. She announced t hat
Cof fman Cove's tinber industry was lost in 2002, so her
community depended greatly on state and federal funds. She
testified in support of funding for the library
construction project request. She stated that the Coffman
Cove Community Library was |isted nunber two on the request
list along with Wasilla, Nome, and Thorn Bay. The total
request was $12.7 mllion, and each of the conmunities
requesting library funding had their matching funds in
order. Al of the libraries had worked with the Foraker
G oup, and were shovel -ready.

8:39:19 PM

HOMRD MERMELSTEIN, EXECUTIVE D RECTOR, TETLIN VILLAGE
COUNCI L, TETLIN (via teleconference), testified in support
of the Tetlin Road Project. He stated that the project was
in its final phase, and inprovenents would be nade to the
road that inproves drainage, and increase safety and
heal t h. The inprovenents would greatly benefit t he
community and travelers. The Tetlin Road serves residents
and is an economc driver as it provided a direct link for
the village's econonic developnment through the mineral
i ndustry. The road was the only access for the community to
receive basic services Ilike mil, health care, and
educati on.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 29 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



8:42: 46 PM

MOLLY WOOD, MEMBER, CHASE COVMMUNITY COUNCIL, CHASE (via
t el econference), spoke against all funding for the Susitna
Dam She announced that the entire community of Chase was
opposed to the dam She felt that the project did not
address Al aska's nobst urgent needs, and put |ocal econonies
and salnon fisheries at risk. She urged the use of funds
for other projects that would better neet the energy needs
of Alaska like the Natural Gas Pipeline; funding for the
return of a salnmon fishery to the Susitna and upper Cook
Inlet; and energy efficiency projects including those in
rural villages.

8:44:26 PM

EARNEST ARNCLD, SELF, TANACROSS (via tel econference), urged
support of the $400,000 for the new nulti-purpose facility
that woul d provide space for a health clinic and community
center. He stated that the funds would be used to |everage
funds for a matching grant fromthe Rasnussen Foundati on.

8:46: 04 PM

RYAN  STENCEL, ANCHORAGE SO L AND WATER CONSERVATI ON
DI STRICT, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), testified in
support of funding of the Sand Lake Elodea project and
continuing services of the Anchorage Soil and Wter
Conservation District. The district would not be able to
address the elodea and vegetation overgrowth in Sand Lake
w thout the requested funding. She stated that the project
al ready cost the district significant funds to barely deal
with the issue, which inhibited the district's ability to
provi ded servi ces.

8:47: 46 PM

RHONDA PI TKA, FIRST CHI EF, BEAVER VILLAGE COUNCIL, BEAVER
(via teleconference), testified in support of funding for
the renovations of the first HUD honme. She stressed that
there was a desperate need for housing in Beaver. She
stated that the last HUD home was built in 2008 by the
Interior Regional Housing Authority. The requested funds
woul d provide enough noney to build three houses in Beaver.
She remarked that the Beaver School had |ow enrollnment, so
Beaver was nmking efforts to attract famlies to the
village. The current state of Beaver's housing nmade it

House Fi nance Conmmittee 30 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



difficult for famlies to decide to nove back to the
village. She announced that the request was listed as the
nunber one priority for the community of Beaver.

8:49: 23 PM

RUTH WOOD, SELF, TALKEETNA (via teleconference) testified
agai nst the Susitna Dam She stated that the project would
cost nore than $5 billion, and would not supply affordable
electricity. She felt that there were other nore inportant
projects that could be funded with the designated nopney.
She felt that the noney that was used to fund projects that
did not seemto nake sense was irresponsible.

8:50: 53 PM

KELLY SW HART, CHIEF, POLICE DEPARTMENT, PETERSBURG (Vvia
tel econference), spoke in support of funding for the
renovation of Petersburg's nunicipal building. He spoke to
the deficiencies of the current nmunicipal building as an
adequate police and jail facility. He reported that the
existing building was constructed in 1958 and had
originally housed the public works maintenance garage; it
had |ater been renovated into a police station, but the
process had not been conpleted adequately. He reported that
during the renovation, the foundation had not been properly
tied in to the existing structure and that a second story
was added to the poorly conceived foundation; as a result,
the foundation was sinking in the mddle fromthe wei ght of
the second floor. He stated that the current jail
facilities did not have adequate visiting room and required
inmates to be noved out of secure areas for showering,
visiting, and to receive nedical and other treatnment; the
| ack of security routinely put the public and enployees in
| ess than safe conditions. He discussed structural problens
with the current nmunicipal building and noted that when
i nmat es showered, backed up water from the drain ran down
the hallway towards the front door; as a result, enployees
and visitors had to walk past the contam nated water that
was traversing a sloped floor to access other parts of the
bui | di ng.

8:52:47 PM

STEPHAN d ESBRECHT, PETERSBURG BOROUGH, PETERSBURG (via
tel econference), testified in support of $9.7 mllion,
needed to conplete the Police Departnent Building. The

House Fi nance Conmmittee 31 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



facility was dated and unsafe. The state jail facility was
supported by the Al aska State Troopers. He noted the need
for additional funding to conplete the project.

8:54:29 PM

JANET KUSSART, SELF, JUNEAU, testified in favor of the
Al aska Marine H ghway System spoke in opposition to the
Juneau Access Project. She noved to Juneau wth the
understanding that there was no road connecting Juneau the
nati onal highway system She felt that the ferry system was
service to the public as Southeast Al aska's only "highway."
She felt that the ferry was the safest way to travel,
because there were many aval anche shoots al ong the proposed
road. She remarked that the road would be built to serve
Kensi ngton M ne, which was a private entity, and took issue
Wi th using public funds to serve a business. She urged the
committee to be used for current road repairs, conplete
SLAM be put toward education, and nmaintain the current
ferry system She felt that the road was too dangerous, and
was 90 mles of road to nowhere.

8:56: 50 PM

ROB JORDAN, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, ALASKA CRAFTSMAN HOVE
PROGRAM JUNEAU, requested $1 mllion for a hands-on energy
efficiency training project through the Alaska Craftsman
Hone Program He stated that the organization partnered
with representatives from building industry, nor t gage
| enders, and housing authorities to provide nore than 4000
hours of training per year in 30 conmunities to helping to
increase energy efficiency and reduce energy costs. The
training provided a value added benefit to prograns |ike
the Honme Energy Rebate Program and the Watherization
Prograns. He stressed that energy efficiency was very cost
effective and was a worthy investnent for reducing energy
demand and wast e.

9:00: 11 PM

SHAWN EI SELE, SELF, JUNEAU (via teleconference) testified
agai nst the Juneau Access Project. He felt that Juneau was
al ready accessible. He renmarked that the road literally
went nowhere, and disagreed with Mayor Sanford's comrents.
He felt that Berners Bay was the epitone of local, wld
recreations areas. He stated that the forests in the area
were the nost wld and productive forests in the Cty and

House Fi nance Conmmittee 32 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



Borough of Juneau, and were test forests for the United
States Forest Service to nonitor what truly wild areas were
like. He felt that the road would destroy the recreation in
t hat area.

9:02: 25 PM

AXEL BURGHEI M SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), spoke
in against funding the Susitna-Watana Hydroelectric
Project. He relayed that the coalition was not against
hydro power and was aware of its benefits to the state. He
opined that the scale of the Susitna-Watana Hydroelectric
Pr oj ect was not acceptable and that hydroel ectric
facilities were not recognized as renewable at the size of
t he Susitna-Watana project. The coalition believed that the
Susitna dam would not solve Al aska's energy problens and
that the state could better spend its noney el sewhere. He
stated that the dam would be built in the |ocation where he
harvested his caribou and noose. He pointed out that he
fished the river year round and set-netted at its nmouth in
the summers; he thought that it seenmed crazy to spend

billions to kill fish when you were spending mllions to
try and save them He concluded that he and his famly
relied on the Susitna River for their way of life and that

it was a healthy river that was abundant w th Chinook,
Sockeye, and Coho sal non.

9: 06: 09 PM

SUZI  PEARSON, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, ABUSED WOVEN' S AID IN
CRISIS (AWAIC), ANCHORACE (via teleconference), addressed
the $2 nmillion request sponsored by Senator MGQuire to
expand the existing facility to neet demands. She expl ai ned
that the shelter provided victinms of donmestic violence with
support since 1977. The agency occupied the sanme building
for approximately 35 years. She stated that the energency
shelter was the only one of its kind in a conmmunity of 290
t housand people. She stated that the 52 bed shelter
operated at or over-capacity 50 percent of the tine |ast
year. She stated that services were |limted due to |ack of
space to accommpdate additional staff. She nentioned a
separate request by the governor that was specific to
repair and renovati on.

9:08: 37 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 33 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



VIRG NIA  MCCASLIN, PROGRAMS MANAGER, DISABILITY ABUSE
RESPONSE TEAM AWAI C, ANCHORAGE (via tel econference), spoke
in support of an additional $1 mllion to expand AWAI C. She
announced that working in donestic violence prevention was
very difficult. She shared that she had recently observed a
situation regarding an abused woman who was unable to find
a safe shelter, because of |ack of space at AWAI C

9:10: 45 PM

ANNA BRENNI NGER, MEMBER, FRIENDS OF THE LI BRARY, ANCHORAGE
(via teleconference) testified for the requested $10
mllion in funding for the Loussac Public Library. She
stated t hat t he Fri ends of t he Li brary donat ed
approxi mately $90, 000 per year to put books on the shelves
of the library and sponsor critical library projects Ilike
the Summer Reading Program and the Innovation Laboratory.
She stated that the Anchorage Library Foundation raised
capital noney for |arge projects.

9:13:14 PM

CATHLEEN MCLAUGHLI N, DI RECTOR, PARTNERS FOR PROGRESS RE-
ENTRY CENTER, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference) testified
about the re-entry program She stated that the center
served 580 individuals leaving incarceration in the seven
nmont hs since opening. The center enabled one to two hires
each day leading to collaborations with |andlords that were
willing to rent to and enploy participants. She stated that
comuni ty-based re-entry prograns were effective in other
states and Al aska's experinent was successful. She noted
that nost prisoners were released in Anchorage so the
program served peopl e statew de.

9:14:51 PM

REG NA MANTEUFEL, CREATOR, BACK TO WORK NETWORK, ANCHORAGE
(via teleconference), spoke in support of the $5 mllion
for Partners for Progress. She announced that she had
worked wth poor people and addicts becone productive
menbers of society.

Vi ce- Chai r Neuman handed t he gavel to Co-Chair Austerman

9:19: 45 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 34 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



KYLEE SI NGH, SELF, ANCHORACE (via teleconference) testified
agai nst funding for the proposed Susitna Dam She stated
that the project would cost nmore than $5 billion, and woul d
not supply affordable electricity. She felt that there were
other nore inportant projects that could be funded with the
desi gnated noney. She felt that the noney that was used to
fund projects that did not seem to nmake sense was
i rresponsi bl e.

9:20:45 PM

JI M KACSH, MAYCR, CITY OF CORDOVA, spoke in support of $6.5
mllion in funding for the Cordova Center. He discussed the
slow recovery of Cordova after the Exxon Valdez oil spil

and pointed out that the |oss of herring and crab fisheries
in the area had left famlies and businesses struggling in
the winter nonths. She stated that the Cordova Center was
at the core of an econom c devel opment plan to include to
winter tourism conventions, and neetings to Cordova's
econony. He stated that the Cordova Center could bring over
$500,000 in new nobney every winter to Cordova. He stated

that the Exxon Valdez G Spill Trustee Council had
conmitted $8.3 million to the project and that Cordova was
asking $6.5 mllion in matching funds. He concluded that

the project would help keep Cordova's residents enployed
and busi nesses open during the Iong winter nonths.

9:22:17 PM

ALBERT JUDSON, SELF, JUNEAU, testified against the Juneau
Access Project. He referred to a prepared testinony (copy
on file). He felt that the people of all three comunities
had expressed great opposition to the project, and felt
that they had been purposefully excluded from neetings. He
felt that the noney should be used to only inprove the
ferry system He felt that the conmttee did not understand
the environnmental inpacts of the project.

9: 25: 38 PM

MARTHA MOCRE, VOLUNTEER BOARD MEMBER, ALASKA BRAI N | NJURY
NETWORK (ABIN), JUNEAU, testified in support of funding for
ABI N. She stated that ABIN was a small non- profit
organi zation dedicated to helping brain injured Al askans
find treatnent and services that would inprove their Ilives
and help themreturn to productivity. She stated that ABIN
was the only organizations of its kind in the state. She

House Fi nance Conmmittee 35 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



expl ained that ABIN had hel ped hundreds of brain injury
survivors. Alaska had one of the highest rates of brain
injuries in the country, and as awareness i ncreases, nore
people are screening and identified as having a brain
i njury.

9:27:28 PM

PAUL  FUHS, SELF, FAIRVIEW testified 1in support of
requested $5 mllion for a three vyear program for
controlling the chronic inebriates in Anchorage. He
remar ked that many of the chronic inebriates began drinking
in the norning, by the afternoon they were vomting
anywhere they could find, exposing thenselves, passing out,
and continuing with the sane behavior the next day. He
stated that the Fairview Business Association hired sone of
the best social service providers in Anchorage, who agreed
to divert people from prison. He stated that there was
current devel opnent of a case-nmanaged coordi nated system to
enhance accountability. He stressed that the alcohol tax
shoul d be used to fund substance abuse treatnent.

9:31:27 PM

CAROLYN  SAYRE, SELF, TALKEETNA (via t el econf erence)
testified in opposition to Susitna-Wtana hydroelectric
project funding. She stated that $30.9 nillion was
previously allocated for the necessary work. The |icensing
study efforts were on hold due to inability to fulfill the
study schedul e.

9:32:50 PM

MELI SSA MARTI N, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), spoke
in support of funding the East H gh School Track and Field
Stadium She stated that the current stadium was in great
disrepair. The outdoor field was used by all types of
community groups for various types of activities. She felt
that the spectator stands were in major disrepair, and in
worse shape than nost of the local mddle schools. She
stated that the property had potential for great revenue.

9:34:45 PM

W LLI PRI TTI E, SELF, SUNSH NE (via t el econf erence)
testified in opposition to funding for the Susitna-Wtana
hydroel ectric project. He strongly supported investnent in

House Fi nance Conmmittee 36 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



future technol ogi es as opposed to past problens. He w shed
to avoid mstakes seen in the Lower 48 related to dam
proj ects.

9:36:32 PM

LEONARD MENKA, SELF, COPPER RIVER (via teleconference),
di scussed historical experience in Alaska related to TAPS
but | ost connecti on.

9:38:31 PM

JAN WRENTMORE, SELF, SKAGWAY (via teleconference) testified
agai nst funding the Juneau Access Road. She believed that
the state spending was prenature wthout good data
regarding final costs. She nentioned the increased fisca
note from $260 mllion to $507 m|Ilion. She understood that
$180 mllion had been appropriated to the project. She
expressed confusion about the additional $35 nillion in
proposed funding. She added that the Juneau Access Road
proj ect was not construction ready.

9:40: 20 PM

SHELBY SURDI CK, SELF, SKAGMY (via teleconference), spoke
agai nst the Juneau Access Project. She wunderstood that
there were nmany financial and transportation issues that
the residents of Skagway are faced wth, but did not
approve of the project. She stated that she was a fourth
generation Skagwegi an, and understood first-hand the
transportation issues that Skagway faced. She did not think
that the proposed road would solve any transportation
I Ssues.

9:41: 53 PM

RACHEL FORD, TAIYA |INLET WATERSHED COUNCI L, SKAGMY (via
tel econference), spoke against the Juneau Access Project.
She felt that the proposal was dangerous and inefficient.
She encouraged the conmmttee to reallocate the $35 mllion
to |l ess destructive projects. She felt that the ferry/road
concept for travel along the Lynn Canal would be hardly
useable due to avalanches and would scar the currently
undevel oped | andscape. She wanted the funds to be used to
inprove the ferry system

9:42: 33 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 37 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



DUSTIN CRANEY, SELF, SKAGMY (via teleconference), spoke
agai nst the Juneau Access Project. He felt that the noney
could be used for nore inportant projects that were shovel -
ready. He stressed that the project did not have | ocal
support, because Juneau voted "no" on the project, and
Hai nes and Skagway strongly opposed the project. He
remar ked that the Arny Corps of Engineers, DOI, and the EPA
did not agree on the best route for the road. He also
pointed out that the EIS was not conplete and there was no
consensus on the cost of the project.

9:43: 43 PM

C.E. FURBISH, SELF, SKAGMY (via teleconference), spoke
agai nst the Juneau Access Project. She felt that the noney
should be wused for other worthy, wuncontroversial, and
comuni ty-supported projects. She renmarked that the Arny
Corps of Engineers, DOI, and the EPA did not agree on the
best route for the road. She also pointed out that the EI S
was not conplete and there was no consensus on the cost of
t he project.

9:45: 28 PM

DEB POITER, BUSINESS OMER, SKAGMY (via teleconference)
testified against funding the Juneau Access Project. She
felt that the project was controversial and a poor use of
noney. She encouraged the committee to reallocate the $35
mllion to less destructive projects. She felt that the
ferry/road concept for travel along the Lynn Canal woul d be
hardly wuseable due to avalanches and would scar the
currently undevel oped | andscape. She wanted the funds to be
used to inprove the ferry system She also felt that the
nmoney coul d be used for education.

9:47:11 PM

JEN THUSS, SELF, SKAGMY (via teleconference) testified
agai nst funding the Juneau Access Road. She believed that
the state spending was prenature wthout good data
regarding final costs. She nentioned the increased fisca
note from $260 mllion to $507 mllion. She understood that
$180 mllion had been appropriated to the project. She
expressed confusion about the additional $35 mllion in
proposed funding. She added that the Juneau Access Road
proj ect was not construction ready.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 38 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



9:48:13 PM

CORY THOLE, SELF, SKAGMY (via teleconference) testified in
opposition to the $35 mllion contribution to the Juneau
Access Road. He stated that the cost of the road including
mai nt enance was excessive. He stated that if the road was
extended, the community would be responsible for the cost
of the energency response in the event of [|andslide or
aval anche. He suggested contributing the proposed funding
to education. He urged the conmttee to disregard the
corments of Mayor Sanford regarding conparing the proposed
road to TAPS.

9:50:45 PM

| SRAEL MAHAY, NMAHAY'S RIVER BOAT SERVI CE, TALKEETNA (via
tel econference), spoke in against funding the Susitna-
Wat ana Hydroel ectric Project. He relayed that the coalition
was not against hydro power and was aware of its benefits
to the state. He opined that the scale of the Susitna-
Wat ana Hydroelectric Project was not acceptable and that
hydroel ectric facilities were not recognized as renewable
at the size of the Susitna-Watana project. The coalition
believed that the Susitna dam would not solve Al aska's
energy problenms and that the state could better spend its
noney el sewhere. He stated that the dam would be built in
the | ocation where he harvested his caribou and noose. He
pointed out that he fished the river year round and set-
netted at its mouth in the sumers; he thought that it
seened crazy to spend billions to kill fish when you were
spending mllions to try and save them He concluded that
he and his famly relied on the Susitna River for their way
of life and that it was a healthy river that was abundant
wi t h Chi nook, Sockeye, and Coho sal non.

9:51: 55 PM

ELLEN WOLF, SELF, TALKEETNA (via tel econference), urged the
cormittee to avoid allocation of funds for the proposed
Susi t na- Wat ana hydroel ectric project. She stated that over
6000 Al askans opposed the dam and provided concerns and
frustrations regarding the projects that were left
unf unded.

9:53: 02 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 39 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



JEFF TROTTER, HEAD FOOTBALL COACH, EAST H GH SCHOOL,
ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), wurged the inclusion of
funding for the East H gh School field project. He stated
that the current stadium was in great disrepair. The
outdoor field was used by all types of conmunity groups for
various types of activities. He felt that the spectator
stands were in major disrepair, and in worse shape than
nost of the local mddle schools. He stated that the
property had potential for great revenue.

9:55:24 PM

M. Menka added to his previous testinony. He stated that
he had a degree in History, and remarked that there were
many projects that were worthy of state funding.

9:57: 37 PM

MARY  RASMUSSEN, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference)
testified for the requested $10 million in funding for the
Loussac Public Library. She stated that the Friends of the
Li brary donated approximately $90, 000 per year to put books
on the shelves of the library and sponsor critical library
projects |ike the Summer Readi ng Program and the | nnovation
Laboratory. She stated that the Anchorage Library
Foundation rai sed capital noney for |arge projects.

9:59:18 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze queried the status of the bond election
Ms. Rasnussen replied that the bond vote | ost by 14 votes.

9:59:40 PM

KATHERI NE ERI CKSON, SELF, WASILLA (via teleconference)
testified against the Susitna Dam She stated that the
project would cost nore than $5 billion, and would not
supply affordable electricity. She felt that there were
other nore inportant projects that could be funded with the
desi gnated noney. She felt that the noney that was used to
fund projects that did not seem to nmake sense was
i rresponsi bl e.

10: 00: 38 PM

RICH KOCH, CITY MANAGER, KENAI (via teleconference), urged
inclusion of $2.1 mllion for the construction of an access

House Fi nance Conmmittee 40 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



road to the south shore of the nouth of the Kenai River,
that would provide access to over 10,000 personal use
fishery participants each year. He stated that the project
was submitted late, so it was not considered by the Senate
Fi nance Conmittee.

10: 03: 37 PM

DEBORAH  MCOLE, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via t el econf erence)
testified for the requested $10 million in funding for the
Loussac Public Library. She stated that the Friends of the
Li brary donated approximately $90, 000 per year to put books
on the shelves of the library and sponsor critical library
projects |ike the Summer Readi ng Program and the | nnovation
Labor at ory. She stated that the Anchorage Library
Foundati on rai sed capital noney for |arge projects.

10: 06: 13 PM

KERRY MACLANE, CHAI RVAN, SOQUTHEAST SA L AND  WATER
CONSERVATION DI STRICT, SITKA (via teleconference), urged
the inclusion of $1.2 mllion for the Statewide Soil and
Wat er Conservation  Program specifically the Al aska
Association of Conservation Districts (AACD). He stated
that the funds would be used for twelve districts. The AACD
handl ed payroll and served as a fiscal agent to provide
funding for additional grants. He stated that there were
several partnerships, and there would be a nariculture
training workshop in Kake in the wupconmng spring. The
wor kshop would feature experienced oyster farnmers and
scientists who would provide scientific business and
mar ket i ng cl asses.

10: 09: 03 PM

DAN FAUSKE, BOARD MEMBER, BQOARD OF DI RECTORS, COLD CLI MATE
HOUSI NG RESEARCH CENTER, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of funding for the Cold dinate
Housi ng Research Center. He stated that the organization
had nmade i mense contributions to devel op energy research

He remarked that one of the biggest inpedinents for hone
ownership in rural Alaska was the cost of energy. He
stressed that the center provided an industry to Al aska.

10:11: 19 PM

House Fi nance Committee 41 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



TARA Bl CKNELL, SOBOLOFF- MCRAE VETERANS VI LLAGE AND WVELLNESS
CENTER, HAINES (via teleconference), testified in support
of $500,000 for the Soboloff-MRae Veterans Village and
Vel I ness Center. She explained that the funding would be
used to build over 10,000 square feet for Al aska veterans
and over 10,000 square feet of service space for the health
care groups that serve the region. She announced that the
funding would alnost conplete the project. The project
woul d help to close the housing gap for veterans across the
state. It would also inprove health care and create |obs
for the region.

Co- Chair Austerman CLOSED public testinony.

CSSB 119(FIN) was HEARD and HELD in conmittee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ QURNVENT
10: 16: 16 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 10:16 p. m

House Fi nance Committee 42 04/ 14/ 14 5:36 P. M



